ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
May 14, 2003
8:04 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT
Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 146
"An Act relating to a commenorative veterans' |icense plate; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED SB 146 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO 312

"An Act giving notice of and approving the entry into and the
i ssuance of certificates of participation for a |ease-purchase
agreenent for a seafood and food safety |aboratory facility;
relating to the use of certain investnent incone for certain
construction costs; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 312( STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 149

"An Act requiring nonprofit corporations under the Al aska Net
Incone Tax Act to provide prior public notice of |obbying
expenditures and an annual report of |obbying expenditures to
the Departnent of Revenue; providing for a civil penalty for
failure to provide the notice; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 272

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- May 14, 2003



"An Act relating to notor vehicle dealers.™
- MOVED CSHB 272(L&C) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 27
Rel ating to support for a federal appropriation for expansion of
t he Anchorage Jail.
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 40
"An Act relating to issuance of a driver's |license."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: SB 146

SHORT TI TLE: COWENMORATI VE VETERANS LI CENSE PLATE
SPONSOR(S):  SENATOR(S) GUESS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 17/ 03 0517 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 17/ 03 0517 (S) STA, FIN

04/ 03/ 03 (S) STA AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 03/ 03 (S -- Location Change --

04/ 08/ 03 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 08/ 03 (S Moved Qut of Conmmttee

04/ 08/ 03 (S) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 09/ 03 0764 (S) STA RPT 4DP

04/ 09/ 03 0764 (S) DP: STEVENS G COWDERY,
DYSON, GUESS

04/ 09/ 03 0764 (S) FN1: (ADM

04/ 29/ 03 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

04/ 29/ 03 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 29/ 03 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 30/ 03 1045 (S) FIN RPT 3DP 2NR

04/ 30/ 03 1045 (9 DP: W LKEN, TAYLOR, OLSON

04/ 30/ 03 1045 (S) NR. GREEN, BUNDE

04/ 30/ 03 1045 (S) FN1: (ADM

04/ 30/ 03 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

05/ 02/ 03 1104 (S) RULES TO CALENDAR 5/ 2/03

05/ 02/ 03 1104 (9 READ THE SECOND TI ME

05/ 02/ 03 1104 (S) ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- May 14, 2003



UNAN CONSENT

05/ 02/ 03 1105 (S) READ THE THI RD TI VE SB 146

05/ 02/ 03 1105 (S) COSPONSOR('S) : W LKEN, DYSON,
STEVENS G

05/ 02/ 03 1105 (S) FRENCH, LI NCOLN, WAGONER,
SEEKI NS,

05/ 02/ 03 1105 (S) ELTON, TAYLOR, COWNDERY,
OLSQON,

05/ 02/ 03 1105 (S) THERRI AULT

05/ 02/ 03 1105 (S) PASSED Y19 N E1

05/ 02/ 03 1105 (S) EFFECTI VE DATE(S) SAME AS
PASSAGE

05/ 02/ 03 1114 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

05/ 02/ 03 1114 (S) VERSI ON: SB 146

05/ 05/ 03 1305 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

05/ 05/ 03 1305 (H) M.V, STA

05/ 05/ 03 1333 (H) CROSS SPONSOR(S): LYNN,
MCGUI RE

05/ 12/ 03 (H M.V AT 5:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

05/ 12/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Commttee

05/ 12/ 03 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

05/ 13/ 03 1596 (H M.V RPT 6DP

05/ 13/ 03 1596 (H) DP: Cl SSNA, GRUENBERG, FATE,
MASEK,

05/ 13/ 03 1596 (H DAHLSTROM LYNN

05/ 13/ 03 1596 (H) FN1: (ADM

05/ 14/ 03 1630 (H) STA RPT 5DP

05/ 14/ 03 1630 (H) DP: SEATON, GRUENBERG, HOLM
CRAWFORD,

05/ 14/ 03 1630 (H) V\EYHRAUCH

05/ 14/ 03 1630 (H FN1: (ADV

05/ 14/ 03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

BILL: HB 312
SHORT TI TLE: SEAFOOD AND FOOD SAFETY LABORATORY
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

05/ 08/ 03 1477 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

05/ 08/ 03 1477 (H STA, FIN

05/ 08/ 03 1477 (H) FN1: ( DEC)

05/ 08/ 03 1477 (H GOV. TRANSM TTAL LETTER
FORTHCOM NG

05/ 09/ 03 1521 (H GOV. TRANSM TTAL LETTER
RECEI VED

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- May 14, 2003



05/ 13/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
05/ 13/ 03 (H Heard & Held -- Recessed to
Wed. 5/14/03 8:00 AM - -
M NUTE( STA)
05/ 14/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HB 149
SHORT TI TLE: LOBBYI NG BY NONPROFI TS
SPONSOR(S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) WOLF
Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
03/ 05/ 03 0395 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 03 0395 (H STA, JUD, FIN
03/ 05/ 03 0395 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS
04/ 17/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
04/ 17/ 03 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed to
4/ 24/ 03>
04/ 24/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
04/ 24/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
04/ 29/ 03 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
04/ 29/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
05/01/03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
05/01/03 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( STA)
05/ 07/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
05/ 07/ 03 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( STA)
05/ 08/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
05/ 08/ 03 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( STA)
05/ 13/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
05/ 13/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
05/ 14/ 03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
BILL: HB 272

SHORT TI TLE: MOTOR VEHI CLE DEALERS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) WEYHRAUCH

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

04/ 16/ 03 1009 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 16/ 03 1009 (H L&C, STA

04/ 28/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 28/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 30/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 30/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- May 14, 2003



05/ 01/ 03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
05/ 01/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard --
05/ 05/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
05/ 05/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( L&C)
05/ 07/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
05/ 07/ 03 (H) <Bil|l Hearing Postponed to
Fri. 5/9/3>
05/ 09/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
05/ 09/ 03 (H) Moved CSHB 272(L&C) CQut of
Comm ttee
M NUTE( L&C)
05/ 12/ 03 1560 (H) L&C RPT CS(L&C) 6DP 1AM
05/ 12/ 03 1560 (H) DP: LYNN, GATTO, CRAWORD
DAHLSTROM
05/ 12/ 03 1560 (H) ROKEBERG, ANDERSON;, AM
GUTTENBERG
05/ 12/ 03 1560 (H) FN1: ZERQ( LAW
05/ 13/ 03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
05/ 13/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( STA)
05/ 14/ 03 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of SB 146.

ROSEMARY HAGEVI G Executive Director

Cat holic Community Services (CCS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of CCS to inform the
commttee that HB 149 would seriously inpede CCS's ability to
fully neet its mssion and would have negative inpacts on a
nunber of organizations.

JOHN LYBERGER

Lyberger's Car & Truck Sales, LLC

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During hearing on HB 272, expressed concern
about its effects on his business, enployees, and custoners;
expl ai ned his conpany's warranty policy and answered questions.

STEVE ALLW NE, Secretary
Al aska Auto Deal ers Associ ati on ( AADA)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- May 14, 2003



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of AADA in support of
HB 272.

TERI PETRAM

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifying on behalf of Lyberger's Car &
Truck Sales, LLC, answered questions for the commttee during
the hearing on HB 272.

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN, JR., Assistant Attorney General

Fai r Busi ness Practices Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Department O Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered question during the hearing on HB
272.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-63, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Represent ati ves
Weyhrauch, Holm Seaton, Crawford, and G uenberg were present at
the call to order. Representative Lynn arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

SB 146- COMMEMORATI VE VETERANS LI CENSE PLATE

Number 0025

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
SENATE BILL NO 146, "An Act relating to a comenorative
veterans' |icense plate; and providing for an effective date.”

Number 0036

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor of
SB 146, explained that the proposed legislation would set up a

commenorative Al aska veterans' |icense plate, which any Al askan
coul d purchase. She said the funds would be available for
appropriations for any services, but hopefully, she added, for
veteran services. She noted that the statute parallels the

"children's trust license plate.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- May 14, 2003



Nunmber 0105

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report SB 146 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being no objection, SB 146 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HB 312- SEAFOCD AND FOOD SAFETY LABORATORY

Nunber 0128

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 312, "An Act giving notice of and approving the
entry into and the issuance of certificates of participation for
a |ease-purchase agreenent for a seafood and food safety
| aboratory facility; relating to the use of certain investnent
income for certain construction costs; and providing for an
effective date."

Nunber 0146

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSHB 312, Version 23-
GH1134\H, Bannister, 5/13/03, out of commttee w th individual
reconmendati ons and t he acconpanying fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG rem nded the commttee that a notion
was needed first to adopt Version H as a work draft.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked for that notion.

[ TWO UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKERS] sinultaneously noved to adopt the
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 312, Version 23-GH1134\H,
Banni ster, 5/13/03, as a work draft. [There being no objection,
Version H was before the commttee.]

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH, referring to Representative Seaton's previous
notion to nove the bill, announced that there being no
objection, CSHB 312(STA) was reported out of the House State
Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HB 149- LOBBYlI NG BY NONPROFI TS

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 149, "An Act requiring nonprofit corporations
under the Alaska Net Inconme Tax Act to provide prior public
notice of |obbying expenditures and an annual report of | obbying
expenditures to the Departnent of Revenue; providing for a civil

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- May 14, 2003



penalty for failure to provide the notice; and providing for an
effective date.” [Before the conmittee is Version 23-LS0354\H
whi ch had been anended at previous neetings. Al t hough this
docunent is entitled and referred to as a sponsor substitute, it
was not officially such and thus the docunent only exists in the
comm ttee packet.]

Number 0284

ROSEMARY  HAGEVI G Executive Director, Cat hol i c Communi ty
Services (CCS), informed the commttee that CCS is a social
services organization that has been in business in Southeast
Al aska for 30 years. She enphasized that CCS is concerned about
the inplications in this legislation in "all of its versions."
She said that she is unable to determne after reading the
sponsor statement, exactly what the rationale is for the changes
that are proposed.

M5. HAGEVIG stated that CCS has worked diligently on behalf of
vul nerabl e senior citizens, and it has provided a w de range of
services for famlies and children. M. Hagevig said that CCS s

m ssion statenent is clear. She noted that it is on file with
the Departnment of Comrerce, and is part of CCS s incorporating
papers. She said she would read the mssion statenent for the
record. It read as foll ows:

Catholic Community Service advocates and offers social
service opportunities for all Southeast Al askans,
enphasi zing social justice and conpassion. e
acconplish this mssion by fostering the self-
sufficiency and dignity of individuals and famlies
affirmng diversity in culture, faith and way of life.

M5. HAGEVIG pointed out that it is a two-prong m ssion: CCs
provi des services on the ground 24 hours a day, 7 days a week,
and 365 days a year; it also has an obligation to advocate for
the vul nerabl e people it serves.

M5. HACGEVI G revealed that CCS receives funding through grants
and contracts fromthe federal, state, and |ocal governnents, as

well as from tribal organizations. She stated, "These are
clearly restricted dollars and are never used for advocacy or
| obbyi ng. " She said that CCS s contributors understand the
scope of work it does and expects CCS to fulfill its mssion.
[ House Bill 149] would seriously inpede CCS's ability to fully
neet its mssion, she stated. She said she thinks that it's

inmportant for the conmmttee to understand that the proposed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- May 14, 2003



| egi sl ati on would have "really negative inpacts in a very broad-
brushed way for a nunber of organizations."

Number 0525

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the federal |aw changed the
limt a "501(c)(3)" [nonprofit organization] could spend from
"an insignificant anount of this noney," to 20 percent of its
noney. He asked Ms. Hagevig if she could foresee ever spending
20 percent of CCS's funds on | obbying.

M5. HAGEVIG replied that that would be her fondest w sh;
however, an organi zation such as CCS woul d never ever have that
kind of noney available to it. She reveal ed that CCS spends a
m ni scule amount of its total budget on advocacy. She added
that she cannot envision a time when CCS would "ever approach 20
percent."”

Number 0619

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d that, technically, there should be
a CS before the commttee; however, he indicated that there is a
typo. He clarified that HB 149 "did not incorporate an
anendnent that the conmttee adopted.”

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH replied that the commttee would have to dea
wi th that another tine.

[HB 149 was heard and hel d. ]

HB 272- MOTOR VEH CLE DEALERS

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 272, "An Act relating to notor vehicle dealers.”
[Before the commttee was CSHB 272(L&C). ]

Nunmber 0708

JOHN LYBERGER, Lyberger's Car & Truck Sales, LLC ("Lyberger's"),
began by saying he has never been sued or sued anyone, and has
tried to live a life that considers his fellow man and hel ps
people. He expressed his belief that HB 272 will hurt consuners
while nmaking a few people wealthy or wealthier. He al so voiced
concern for his 40-sone enployees, cited exanples of their
generosity, and nentioned thank-you Iletters, postcards, and
gifts from grateful custoners. Speaki ng agai nst Section 1, M.
Lyberger enphasized that conpetition is what the United States

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- May 14, 2003



of Anerica is all about. Noting that just a short tinme ago nmany
peopl e bought cars in the Lower 48 to drive or ship to Al aska,
he said if custoners are treated well, they' Il buy in Al aska

He told nenbers that he wants to be not just a little different
from other dealers, but as opposite as possible, and he wants
people to be 100 percent happy with the vehicles they purchase
from Lyberger's; if someone isn't happy wth a deal or an
autonmobile, he said he wishes to return that person's npney
i mredi atel y.

Number 1024

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN recalled comng onto Lyberger's lot the
previ ous autumm and seeing vehicles he was interested in. He
reported that a young nman [who worked there], when asked, said
t hey were new cars.

MR. LYBERCGER expressed concern and said, "He cannot be on the
prem ses. "

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN further reported that this person hadn't
said a word about the vehicles' being manufactured in Canada or

that there was no [factory] warranty, for exanple. He
acknowl edged that he hadn't gotten to the point of making an
offer or going through the paperwork, but said until these

heari ngs began on [HB 272] he'd believed that what appeared to
be new cars [at Lyberger's] were new. He said he is a little
upset about it.

MR. LYBERCGER responded that whether it has 20 mles or 20,000
mles on it, every vehicle off Lyberger's lot is used, and
alnost all are inported from Canada. Saying every vehicle has a
"100 percent warranty,"” he expl ai ned:

If the factory takes care of it, fine. If it does
not, ... there's a ... Heritage Warranty is what | put
on every vehicle if the factory warranty is not [in]
effect on any given vehicle. ... | do not want any
[customer] spending ... one dollar, one penny. ... It
cones from Lyberger's pocket. | don't want anyone's
[warranty] to be better than Lyberger's. | don't want
any to be as fine ... as nine.
Number 1270

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- May 14, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked what percentage of cars sold in the
United States are made in Canada, and whether this is a conmpn
practi ce.

MR. LYBERGER spoke about many [vehicles] coming into the US
for auctions and so forth. He said many cars at newcar
deal erships in the U S., Mexico, and Canada are made in Canada.

Nunmber 1333

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked whether there is a fairly open border,
with few restrictions with regard to autonobiles. He also asked
about the role of the exchange rate.

MR. LYBERGER nentioned that it is possibly less expensive to
purchase vehicles in the Lower 48 and bring them to Al aska, and
indicated it 1is because of the exchange rate [that it 1is

profitable to purchase cars from Canada]. He also indicated
vehicles from Canada, the U S., or Mxico will be identical.
Saying Canada was the first to have Ilights that conme on

automatically when the car starts, he cited General Mdtors
[vehicles] as an exanple, noting that there are fines in sone
pl aces if people don't drive with headlights on at all tines.

Number 1530

STEVE ALLWNE, Secretary, Alaska Auto Dealers Association
(AADA), testified on behalf of AADA in support of HB 272, as
witten [CSHB 272(L&C)]. He noted that he is also the past-
presi dent of AADA. He stated that the attorney general's office
and AADA share the goal of providing clear and concise
corrections to previous |legislation, while retaining the
| egi slative intent. He stated it is his belief and that of
those dealers he represents that HB 272 accurately provides
t hose corrections.

MR ALLWNE noted that HB 272 is conprised of 8 sections.
Section 1 addresses AS 08.66.015, which has been in effect for
approximately 10 years. The remaining sections of HB 272, he
said, would clarify statutes from "the prior session dealer bil

that was passed and becane law." M. Allwi ne said that Section
1 of HB 272 serves to change AS 08.66.015. Currently, he noted,
under that statute, no new or used-car dealers are permtted to
sell a current-nodel used vehicle, unless they have the sales

and service agreenent - |ike a franchise agreenent - wth the
manuf acturer of that specific vehicle; however, Section 1 would
[ provide exceptions to that restriction]. M. Al wi ne

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- May 14, 2003



hi ghl i ghted sone of the exceptions [found on page 2, lines 2-10
of the bill] and illustrated with exanples how they would work.
Wthout the anmendnents proposed in Section 1, he said

"everybody's out of conpliance."

MR. ALLWNE noted that there has been a lot of discussion
concerning Canadian vehicles, as related to this |I|egislation.
He said he had heard questions regarding how vehicles are noved
bet ween one country and another, and what the definition is of a
grey-market vehicle. He expl ained that [vehicle] manufacturers
have plants throughout Canada, the U S., Mexico, and Brazil.
The vehicles are built and then the manufacturers designate
whi ch market the vehicles will be shipped to. For exanple, M.
Allwine noted that he has trucks that are built in Mexico and
mnivans that are built in Canada. He added that a designation
is also nade that these vehicles are not to be resold "in a
foreign country.™

MR. ALLWNE referred to a billing docunent [used by dealers],
which he said he provided to the commttee. He read a portion
of it as follows:

The vehicle's manufactured to neet specific United
States requirenents; this vehicle is not manufactured
for sale or registration outside of the United States.

MR. ALLW NE conti nued as foll ows:

Knowi ngly selling -- if you're a Canadian dealer and
you sell to an inporter-sonmebody who inports into our
country, these vehicles wll place your sales and
service agreenent, or your franchise agreenent, if you
choose to call it that, in serious |jeopardy. They
have term nated deal er agreenents in Canada over these
issues, so it's not in that dealer's interest to do
t hat . So, when you start at the beginning, the
acquisition of these vehicles is in question, at best.
Essentially what they do is they hire college kids
[who] go out and buy cars wunder the guise of
consuners. Then those cars are inported to this
country.

MR, ALLWNE informed the commttee that the first thing that has
to happen when a vehicle conmes into [the US.] is for the
speedoneter to be changed from kiloneters to mles. He noted
that there are tw situations that can arise: One, he
explained, has to do with an error in the conversion, which

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- May 14, 2003



could be an honest m stake. He said that this type of error
will cost the consuner thousands of dollars and significant
i nconveni ence, because, the issue of "mles unknown" on an
odoneter statenent is significant and wll render a vehicle
virtually worthless. Two, he revealed, the tenptation for
odoneter fraud is great. The added value of a vehicle wth
3,000 mles versus a vehicle with 23,000 is, conservatively,
over $600 a vehicle, he said. He added that the equipnment to
[tanper with an odoneter] is available over the Internet for
approximately $1,800. He referred to a recent article that says
that this type of fraud is on the rise.

MR. ALLWNE turned to another issue regarding titling a vehicle.
He stated, "The potential for a "flood" or a totaled vehicle to
be dunped on the Alaska market is great. The recourse to the
inmporter, he said, is mniml. He asked, "[Have you] ever tried
to sue sonebody in another country?" He also asked, "[Have you]
ever tried to take action on vyour credit card in another
country?" He said it is a difficult operation.

MR. ALLWNE turned to warranty issues, which he said are a bhig

problem with a manufactured used car. Many manufacturers, in an
effort to stem the tide of vehicles into [the US.] "in this
manner” have "elimnated all their warranty.” The offering of a

no-charge service contract, under the guise of a warranty
creates a false inpression that the consunmer is getting a new
vehicle with a new vehicle warranty, he opined. He comment ed
that he believes he included "sonmething that indicates it's a
warranty" in the attachnment provided to the commttee. He said,
"The fact is, if you re a dealer, you're paying for it, and if
you're paying for it - even if it's no charge - you' re attaching
it to the car deal, and it's a service contract. That's the
| ong and short of it."

MR, ALLWNE stated that new car dealers invest significant suns
of nmoney in training, facilities, and tools. For exanple, he
noted that a 2004-nodel vehicle requires about $8,500 in
training and special tools. He said, "That's for one of the new
ones we have coming up."” He added, "OCh, by the way, that
doesn't include the training, because it seens |ike none of the
training ends up in the great state of Al aska."

MR, ALLWNE stated that responsibility is a big issue. He
listed the purchase, the problens, the tools, the people, the
training, and said, "None of this is offered by a used-car
deal er.™ If [consuners] have a problem with a current-node

used vehicle, [the used-car dealer] is going to tell them to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- May 14, 2003



take it to a newcar dealer to have it fixed. He added, "It's
al ways the new car dealer.”

MR. ALLWNE referred to previous testinony and indicated that
there was an inpression left that there's a |ot of certification
that goes on before "this vehicle conmes into this country”;

[that] the inporters are certified. M. Alwne stated that
there's no certification required. He remarked that a little
bit of research indicates that "the registration to inport into
our country, from our governnment, is sinply 'stuff,' it doesn't
necessarily have to be cars - it can be anything." He clarified
that it is a comrerce registration, not a technical one. He

said that the [US.] Departnment of Transportation and the
Nat i onal Hi ghway Traffic Safety Adm nistration do not verify or
certify speedoneters or "any of that traffic or that novenent."

He noted one exception: " Qur gover nnment requires a
certification of content.” The only people who are authorized
to certify that content are the manufacturers; the inporters do
not have this ability. He added, "And quite frankly, the
manuf acturers will not certify the content.” He continued as
fol | ows:

How do they do it? How do they get them across? It's
real sinple. They just print a copy off the Internet
and they hand it to the custons people, and away they

go.

MR. ALLWNE stated that the final argunent is in regard to
| egislative intent. At the tinme that the statute was originally
enacted, he said, nunerous consuners and newcar dealers, both
in Alaska and Washington had |ost hundreds of thousands of
dol | ars. The reason for that loss, M. Alwne noted, is "the

brokering of new cars and trucks." He stated that it was the
intent of the original law to elimnate the opportunity to sell
new cars w thout being a franchised newcar dealer, "so as to
rectify the existing situation at that tinme and to provide
protection to the public.” He explained as follows:

They did this by providing that an individual may not
hold him or herself out to be a new car deal er, unless
they hold a sales and service agreenent for that
specific product, [and] that they nmay not represent a
used car as a new car

The whol esale manufacture and inportation of these
cars is in violation of the original statute's intent.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- May 14, 2003



These are new cars under a thin veil of being a used
car.

MR. ALLWNE noted that one of the attachnents that he provided
to the committee, in addition to showng a warranty, shows the

mles on "those cars.” He remarked, "And that was an
advertisenment out of an Anchorage paper." He said, "A car wth
seven mles on it is still a new car. They may call it a used
car, but this is the manufacturing of a used car to circunvent
the statute in our state." The statute as it stands right now,
he reiterated, doesn't allow anybody to sell a current-nodel
used car. The proposed legislation, he rem nded the commttee,

woul d change the statute so that "new or used-car deal ers have
the ability to sell a current-nodel used car, but it does not
allow for the brokering or the wholesale mnufacturing and
inportation of a Canadian vehicle." M. Alwine said that,
ultimately, if a consunmer has a difficulty with a current-node
used car, he/she only turns to one source, which is the new car
deal er. He posited that it is not appropriate for a used-car
dealer to have the ability to sell a new car, w thout having any
responsibility or obligation beyond the sale.

Nunber 2231

REPRESENTATI VE  LYNN asked M . Allwine who placed the
advertisenent to which he previously referred, because he noted
that the nanme was not show ng on the handout.

MR ALLWNE offered to hand out a clearer copy of that
adverti senent to the commttee.

Nunber 2250

The House State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was recessed
at 8:36 a.m to a call of the chair.

Nunber 2251

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH called the neeting back to order at 9:36 a.m
Present at the call back to order were Representatives Holm
Seat on, G uenberg, and Wyhrauch. Represent ati ves Dahl strom
Lynn, and Crawford arrived as the neeting was in progress.

Number 2275

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM indicated a problem between "the timng"
regarding new cars versus "newused cars." He noted that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- May 14, 2003



"normal course of business"” is not defined in statute. He asked
M. Alwine where he thinks the law could be changed [to] be
"sonewhat of a fallback position for both used-car dealers and
new car deal ers.”

Number 2370

MR. ALLW NE answered that the bill, as witten, is an attenpt to
| evel the playing field on wused vehicles. He said it 1is
recogni zed that rental fleets wll, historically, turn their
vehicles in approximately a six-nonth period. He added t hat

manuf acturers require a retention [of] rental vehicles for a
specific period of tinme, which traditionally has been six
nont hs.

MR. ALLWNE said that Representative Holm raises an issue that
M. Arpino had indicated yesterday, regarding a vehicle that's a
r epossessi on. Utimately, he said, [the intent of the bill] is
to correct the statute in such a manner that new car deal ers and

used-car dealers are in conpliance. He said, "There are
essentially four ways that any of us would end up with another
manuf acturer's vehicle as a current-nodel vehicle." He

listed the four ways: taking it as trade-in; buying it directly
from a consuner; [obtaining the vehicle] froma rental [fleet],
either directly, or through auctions; or "a repossessed
vehicle." He continued:

So, if you were to include repossessed vehicle, you
have covered all of the legitimte sources of used
vehicles that wuld be available to all of the
deal ers.

Number 2491

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the previous testinony of
soneone who obtains nost of his cars at dealer auctions. He
said that it appears that [the proposed |egislation would]
excl ude "those sources of cars."

MR. ALLW NE responded that that is incorrect. He clarified, "If
it ... has been a rental vehicle and it has been retained for a
period of six nmonths - as the bill states - that vehicle is
avai lable for sale to any dealer.™

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that he was not talking about

rental cars, but about "other cars.” He said, "I nean there are
deal er auctions on used cars all the time." He stated his

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- May 14, 2003



understanding that the proposed legislation "wants to carve out
an exception so that no current-year nodel could be sold at
deal er auctions to anyone other than a dealership that has a
service and sal es agreenent with a manufacturer."”

MR. ALLWNE stated that that is not exactly correct. He
conti nued as foll ows:

These are the basic sources that | have cited; these

are how the cars are run through an auction. Thi s

woul d not permt any dealer to buy a vehicle that was
inported to this country as a manufactured used car
with a handful of mles on it, at an auction.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Allwine to "forget about the
"inmported to this country,' because this doesn't talk about
that." He said that [HB 272] addresses any current-nodel-year
car. He stated his interpretation that HB 272 says that a used-
car dealer cannot go to an auction and buy any car that's a
current-year nodel. The only people who can do so, he
conti nued, would be the manufacturers' |icensed deal ers.

MR. ALLW NE responded that he believes Representative Seaton is
readi ng [the |anguage] incorrectly, because the source of those
used cars would either be a lender offering vehicles that have
been repossessed, or rental vehicles. He asked Representative
Seaton to remenber, "W're doing this very small w ndow of only
current-nodel vyear." He noted, "Those are the prinme sources,
excluding - as you nentioned before - ... inported vehicles."

Nunmber 2560

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he has purchased vehicles
through the insurance auction frequently. The cars nmay be
"dinged up,"” and sone of them are current-year nodels that are
sol d. However, he offered his understanding that, according to
HB 272, only the manufacturer or dealer could buy a current-
nodel - year car

Nunmber 2586

MR. ALLWNE replied as follows:

The type of vehicles you're citing - if you chose to
include that, | suppose it would be acceptable;
however, those vehicles - if they're disposed of by an

insurance carrier, and they're current-nodel vehicles

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- May 14, 2003



- those vehicles are wusually totaled vehicles, and
they're traditionally not purchased by new and used-
car dealers. That's a little bit out of the realm

Nunmber 2669

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the commttee had heard a
| ot of testinony yesterday regarding auctions. He stated his
understanding that wused-car dealers buy their vehicles at
auctions, but wunder this proposed legislation they would no
| onger be able to do that. He said that he would like to have
"a person fromthat group” join M. Allwine at the witness table
to find out exactly what it is "they are not able to do under
the bill,"” and to hear [M. Allw ne's] response.

Number 2700

TERI PETRAM testifying on behalf of Lyberger's Car & Truck
Sales, LLC, joined M. Allwine at the witness table per the
request of the chair.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG repeated his comment regarding the
previous day's testinony from used-car dealers. He asked M.
Petram "Were you tal king about exclusively for an auction?”

M5. PETRAM answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his wunderstanding that the
point of contention between M. Allwine and Ms. Petram is in
regard to the ability to purchase vehicles at foreign auction.
He asked if that is correct.

M5. PETRAM answer ed yes.

[ AN UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER commented, via teleconference, that
that is not correct.]

Nunmber 2775

CHAIR VEYHRAUCH told the unidentified speaker that he is out of
order.

MR, ALLWNE stated that HB 272 will carve out the inportation
and nmanufacture of used vehicles from Canadian markets -
vehicles that were not intended for the United States market.
He added, "It will not preclude Lyberger's or nyself from buying
current-nodel vehicles at auction, if they come from the source

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- May 14, 2003



of rentals or potentially - if you choose to include it -
| enders repossessions. It will preclude grey-nmarket cars."”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that he doesn't know the neaning
of grey-market cars; however, he said that he doesn't want to
get into that now He asked, "Wiy shouldn't they be able to buy
cars at a foreign auction?"

MR. ALLWNE answered that it's not actually a foreign auction

the auctions are in the U S. He opined, "This does not place a
hardship on a used-car dealer.” He reveal ed, "These vehicles,
when they go through the auction, are disclosed as Canadian
vehicles."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Wiy should you be able to buy
t hese vehicles, and not then®"

MR, ALLWNE replied that, based on having a franchi se agreenent

with a manufacturer, that manufacturer is unwilling to "give ne
that latitude for very long." He clarified, "In other words, I
also will not be able to buy those.” He continued as follows:

And if you chose to say, "Wiat's good for one is good
for the other,” that would certainly be acceptable to
me; but the fact is, the manufacturers control that
situation with us, and they ... don't permt us for
very long to go purchase Canadi an vehicles and resell
themin this market.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Allwine if he would be
willing to have everybody prohibited from doing that.

MR. ALLWNE answered, "1'd love it, | just don't know that it's
appropriate at this time. But | would love it, yes, sir."

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if that would be acceptable to
the used-car industry.

Number 2900

M5. PETRAM answered that there is nore than just her interests
involved in HB 272. She said that there are auctions that
enpl oy hundreds of people who would be effected by this. She
noted, "And where they get their vehicles is different than
where Lyberger's gets [its] vehicles.”

Number 2964

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- May 14, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said it sounds like M. Alwine wants a
| aw passed that will say that it is illegal to inport current-
nodel Canadian vehicles into the US. for sale, which would
involve changing a law that would change a trade relationship
between the U 'S and Canada. He stated that he is not
particularly confortable [in] doing that.

MR ALLWNE stated, "That is not what we're asking [the
| egi slature] to do." He said he would defer to the attorney
general's office for further clarification.

TAPE 03-63, SIDE B
Number 2983

CLYDE (ED) SNIFFEN, JR, Assistant Attorney General, Fair
Busi ness Practices Secti on, G vil Di vi sion (Anchor age) ,
Department O Law, testified that he has been working with the
auto dealers on |anguage for HB 272, but primarily the |anguage
contained in Sections 2-8. He enphasized that the bulk of the
bill is contained in those sections, which are inportant
revisions to the current auto dealer statute. He categorized
t hose changes as points of clarification and sone deletions [of
| anguage] that doesn't apply to the way car dealers advertise
and sell wused cars in Al aska. He said, "So, with respect to
Sections 2-8, we request your support.”

MR. SNIFFEN referred to the controversial Section 1. He turned
to a recent question regarding whether or not this |law would
have an inpact on foreign trade, whether there are sone North
Anmerican Free Trade Agreenent (NAFTA) issues that cone up, and
whether it's the legislature's province to interfere with these
trade relations. He continued as follows:

If there is a problem it already exists, because the
current statute already prevents these things from
happeni ng. So, | don't know that the |anguage of

Section 1, in HB 272, would change anything. ... [HB]

272, in a sense, carves out an exception to this
probl em that al | ows at | east sone  of t hese
transactions to proceed. That is, transactions that

involve the acquisition of a Canadian-manufactured
vehicle or a vehicle manufactured for sale in Canada
from an ordinary consunmer, from a rental fleet, and
from sonme other areas.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- May 14, 2003



|'"ve listened to the testinony from Jim Arpino and

from the representative from Lyberger's, and | think
there [have] been sonme good points raised, in the
sense that: "What if you want to go to an auction and

purchase a vehicle nmanufactured for sale in the United
States and bring it wup to Alaska? Wuld this

| egi slation prohibit that?" And the answer is:
"Well, the current legislation already prohibits
that." The changes suggested by HB 272 do not seemto
account for that sort of situation, and I|I'm not
certain whether or not it should or should not. There
are probably always going to be sone of these nuances
that cone up that we'll have to ... work with ... into

the future, to decide if there are issues that we need
to address t hrough  further anendnent s to the
| egi sl ati on.

MR. SNIFFEN stated that the position of the attorney genera
(AG on Section 1 is to be looking out for the interests of the
consuners. The AG s office, he added, would prefer to stay out
of the battle between the new and used-car dealers.
Not wi t hstanding that, he said he thinks sone of the comments M.
Allwne mde were appropriate, because there are situations
where consuners are sinply not aware that these vehicles do have
sonme of these issues. For exanpl e: the vehicles nmay not have
manuf acture warranties; they do not have Alaska "lenon |aw'
protections, because the are used vehicles; and they have had
odoneter switches done, which may or may not have been done in
an inappropriate fashion. He added that [the AG s office] has
not investigated the latter, therefore it cannot testify wth
any certainty on whether "the swaps" are consistently done in
violation of |law, or not.

MR. SNIFFEN stated that those types of disclosures, at a
m nimum need to be nmade. He added that he is uncertain whether
or not they are done in all circunmstances and, based on an
earlier question by one of the representatives, apparently they
are not made all the tine.

Nunber 2810

MR. SNIFFEN stated his belief that the inportation of these
vehi cl es manufactured for sale in Canada is illegal. He said he
thinks they are legally inported and that the inportation
process is proceeding in accordance with state and federal |aw
He continued as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- May 14, 2003



VWhere |

think the problem lies is upstream from the

importation process. There is just sinply no way you

can get

a vehicle onto M. Lyberger's lot ... in

Anchorage that is a current-nodel vehicle with 100
mles on it, mnufactured originally for sale in

Canada, that doesn't involve sone kind of, if not
illegal, at least illegitimte practice upstream
sonmewher e: ... a dealer violating a franchise
agreenent; ... an inporter who has set up a dummy
conpany to buy vehicles sonehow, [or] ... an inporter

who's paying college kids to buy these vehicles.
There is a transaction of that kind that is taking
pl ace, that results in these vehicles getting into the
hands of the inporters, and then they're inported,

pr obably

illegally, into the United States, and they

end up on used-car dealer |ots.

If we want to open up a market for those Kkinds of

vehi cl es

ki nd of

in Alaska, you're going to encourage that
activity to continue. And |I'mnot certain how

other states have dealt wth this issue. ['"'m sure
this happens in sonme of the bordering states in the
Lower 48. | don't know if there's |legislation
considered in those states to stop this, but Al aska

doesn't
lead in

wi th our

And it
we want

need to follow necessarily, we can perhaps
this area, since we do have a close connection
Canadi an fri ends.

is going to be a policy call on whether or not

to do something to prohibit that practice.

Actually, we already have l|aw that prohibits that
practice. And if we're going to keep that |law, do we

want to

sone of

carve out at |east sonme exceptions that allow
the nore legitinate transactions to take

pl ace, so new and used-car dealers can sell at |east
sone of these cars?

Number 2710

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Sniffen to confirm that his
feeling is that these cars are probably being inported |egally,
but there was probably a Canadian franchise violation that nost
| i kely occurred before the inportation.

MR, SNI FFEN

responded that that is the understanding of [the

AG, based on reports received frominporters in Alaska and from

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- May 14, 2003



sone of the new and used-car dealers. He reiterated that the
AG has not investigated this issue in any detail.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he doesn't know if the franchise
agreenents are private or have to do with Canadian |aws. He
asked M. Sniffen what he is suggesting be done by the
| egi sl ature.

MR. SNl FFEN said he doesn't think that the AG or the newcar
dealers proposing |[Section 1] are suggesting that [the
| egi slature] should do something to stop those kinds of
transacti ons. He added that, frankly, he doesn't think that
there is anything that can be done to stop those things from
happeni ng. He continued as foll ows:

| think it's neant to just point out that these used-
car dealers seem to be suggesting, "Hey, we're going
to auctions and we're buying these cars and doing
everything [legally]." well, they are, Dbecause
they're ignoring sone of these other problens that
occur upstream And to say that these vehicles are

inported ... legally and [that] everything is fine and
dandy is only good to a point. Sure, they're fine and
dandy ... once you get to the inporters, but upstream

from that there are sone transactions that shoul dn't
be taking place, and if dealers in Canada and, |
think, laws in Canada were enforced properly, they
woul dn't find their way to the inporter.

The current law actually says you couldn't sell
these cars anyway, and HB 272 continues in that sane
vein, but at |east carves out exceptions for certain
ki nds of transactions.

Nunber 2577

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he has a |arge nunber of
guestions on the entire bill. He said he wanted [the comm ttee]
to at least get a handle on what he called, "the Canadian
probl em" He remarked that the nore testinony he hears, the
nore questions he has.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH stated that his intent is to ask that the bill
be noved out of commttee, so he invited Representative
Gruenberg to ask his questions of M. Sniffen.

Number 2534

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- May 14, 2003



REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to report CSHB 272(L&C) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB 272(L&0) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
Nunmber 2504
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:51
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- May 14, 2003



